
 

A G E N D A  •  P L A N N I N G  C O M M I S S I O N  
Council Chamber, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (559) 324-2340 

www.cityofclovis.com 

C

o

u

n

c

i

l 

C

h

a

m

b

e

r

, 

1

0

3

3 

F

i

f

t

h 

S

t

r

e

e

t

, 

C

l

o

v

i

s

, 

C

A 

9

3

6

1

2 

(

5

5

9

) 

3

2

4

-

 

March 28, 2024 6:00 PM Council Chamber 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special assistance to access 
and/or participate in this Planning Commission meeting, please contact the Planning Division at (559) 
324-2340 (TTY – 711). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Council Chamber. 
 
The Clovis Planning Commission meetings are open to the public at the physical address listed above.  
There are numerous ways to participate in the Planning Commission meetings:  you are able to attend 
in person; you may submit written comments as described below; you may participate by calling in by 
phone (see “Verbal Comments” below); and you may view the meeting which is webcast and accessed 
at www.cityofclovis.com/planning-commission-agendas. 

 

Written Comments 
 

 Members of the public are encouraged to submit written comments at: 
www.cityofclovis.com/planning-commission-agendas at least two (2) hours before the meeting 
(4:00 p.m.). You will be prompted to provide:  
 

 Planning Commission Meeting Date 
 Item Number 
 Name 
 Email 
 Comment (please limit to 300 words or 3 minutes) 

 
 Please submit a separate form for each item you are commenting on. 

 

 A copy of your written comment will be provided to the Planning Commission noting the item 

number. If you wish to make a verbal comment, please see instructions below.  

 

 Please be aware that any written comments received that do not specify a particular agenda 

item will be marked for the general public comment portion of the agenda. 

 

 If a written comment is received after 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting, efforts will be made 

to provide the comment to the Planning Commission during the meeting. However, staff cannot 

guarantee that written comments received after 4:00 p.m. will be provided to the Planning 

1

http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/
http://www.cityofclovis.com/planning-commission-agendas
http://www.cityofclovis.com/planning-commission-agendas


Commission during the meeting. All written comments received prior to the end of the meeting 

will be made part of the record of proceedings. 

Webex Participation 
 
 Reasonable efforts will be made to allow written and verbal comment from a participant 

communicating with the host of the virtual meeting. To do so, a participant will need to chat with 

the host and request to make a written or verbal comment. The host will make reasonable 

efforts to make written and verbal comments available to the Planning Commission. Due to the 

new untested format of these meetings, the City cannot guarantee that these written and verbal 

comments initiated via chat will occur. Participants desiring to make a verbal comment via chat 

will need to ensure that they accessed the meeting with audio transmission capabilities. 

Verbal Comments Made by Telephone or Webex 
 
 If you wish to speak to the Commission on the item by telephone, you must contact the City 

Planner, Dave Merchen, at (559) 324-2346 no later than 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 
 

 You will be asked to provide your name, phone number, and your email. You will be emailed 
instructions to log into Webex to participate in the meeting. Staff recommends participants log 
into the Webex at 5:30 p.m. the day of the meeting to perform an audio check. 

 

 All callers will be placed on mute, and at the appropriate time for your comment your 
microphone will be unmuted. 

 
 You will be able to speak to the Planning Commission for up to five (5) minutes.  

 

    *     *     *     *     * 

CALL TO ORDER 

FLAG SALUTE 

ROLL CALL 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Planning Commission Minutes for February 22, 2024. 

COMMISSION SECRETARY COMMENTS 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COMMENTS 

PUBLIC COMMENTS - This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the Planning 
Commission on any matter within the Planning Commission’s jurisdiction that is not listed on the 
Agenda.  In order for everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 
minutes per topic.  Anyone wishing to be placed on the Agenda for a specific topic should contact the 
Planning Division and submit correspondence at least 10 days before the desired date of appearance. 

2



PUBLIC HEARINGS - A public hearing is an open consideration within a regular or special meeting of 
the Planning Commission, for which special notice has been given and may be required. When a public 
hearing is continued, noticing of the adjourned item is required as per Government Code 54955.1. 

2. Consider Approval - Res. 24-___, A request to approve a second one-year extension to the 
approved Vesting Tentative Tract Map 6203 located on the west side of Thompson Avenue, 
between Ashlan and Dakota Avenues. KB Home, owner/applicant; Shannon Travis, 
representative. 

Staff: Liz Salazar, Assistant Planner 
Recommendation: Approve  

3. Consider Approval - Res. 24-__, CUP2017-004A, Adopting a Class 1 Categorical Exemption 
from further environmental review under CEQA and a request to approve a conditional use 
permit to allow a ±1,545 square foot expansion of the veterinary hospital located at 1710 Shaw 
Avenue.  

 
Gobind Gill LLC, owner and applicant; Sundeep Grewal, Studio G+S Architects, representative.  
 
Staff: Liz Salazar, Assistant Planner 
Recommendation: Approve  
 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS - Administrative Items are matters on the regular Planning Commission 
Agenda other than Public Hearings. 

ADJOURNMENT 

MEETINGS & KEY ISSUES 

Regular Planning Commission Meetings are held at 6 P.M. in the Council Chamber. The following are 
future meeting dates: 

April 18 

May 23 

June 27 

              *     *     *     *     *      

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Planning Commission regarding any item on 
this agenda will be made available for public inspection at the City of Clovis Planning Division, located 
in the Planning and Development Services building, between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through 
Friday. In addition, such writings and documents may be posted on the City’s website at 
www.cityofclovis.com. 

3

file:///C:/Users/aaronlm/Downloads/www.cityofclovis.com


CLOVIS PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
February 22, 2024 

 
 
A meeting of the Clovis Planning Commission was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chair Antuna in the 
Clovis Council Chamber.  
  
Flag salute led by Commissioner Hinkle 
 
Present: Commissioners Hatcher, Hebert, Hinkle, Chair Antuna 
   
Absent:  Commissioner Bedsted 
 
Staff:  Dave Merchen, City Planner 
  George Gonzalez, Senior Planner 
  Liz Salazar, Assistant Planner 
  Joyce Roach, Planning Technician II 
  Sean Smith, Supervising Civil Engineer 
  Matt Lear, City Attorney 
      
MINUTES – 6:01 
ITEM 1 – APPROVED.  
 
Motion by Commissioner Hatcher, seconded by Commissioner Hebert, to approve the January 25, 2024, 
minutes. Motion carried 4-0-1 with Commissioner Bedsted absent. 
 
COMMISSION SECRETARY – 6:02 
City Planner Dave Merchen noted that earlier in the week the City Council settled a long-standing 
housing-related court case and some items in the settlement will come before the Planning Commission. 
The second item was the continuance of a project that had been noticed in the Business Journal, but had 
to be continued. Staff will re-notice the project in the Business Journal and mail notices to adjacent 
property owners when the project is ready for Planning Commission consideration. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS COMMENTS – 6:04 
Commissioner Hinkle remarked that the Cal Cities seminar indicated that the aging population is being 
addressed. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS – 6:04 
None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
ITEM 1 - 6:05 – APPROVED – RES. 24-04, A REQUEST TO APPROVE A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

TO ALLOW FOR THREE TEMPORARY MODULAR OFFICE BUILDINGS AT 1265 N. MINNEWAWA 

AVENUE. THE WELL COMMUNITY CHURCH, OWNER; RUSSEL F. TAYLOR, APPLICANT AND 

REPRESENTATIVE. 

 
Motion by Commissioner Hatcher, seconded by Commissioner Hebert, for the Planning Commission to 
approve Resolution 24-04, a resolution recommending approval of a conditional use permit allowing for 
three temporary modular office buildings at 1265 N. Minnewawa Avenue. Motion carried 4-0-1 with 
Commissioner Bedsted absent. 

4

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



 
  
 

 
ITEM 2 - 6:12 – APPROVED – RES. 24-05, ADOPTING CLASS 2 AND CLASS 32 CATEGORICAL 

EXEMPTIONS FROM FURTHER ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW UNDER CEQA AND A REQUEST TO 

APPROVE A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A DRIVE-THROUGH RESTAURANT IN 

CONJUNCTION WITH AN OFFICE/RETAIL BUILDING LOCATED AT 10 W. BULLARD AVENUE. 

KAVASO INVESTMENTS LLC & BERZERKER LLC, OWNER; VERMELTFOORT ARCHITECTS, INC., 

APPLICANT. 

 
Motion by Commissioner Hatcher, seconded by Commissioner Hebert, for the Planning Commission to 
approve Resolution 24-05, a resolution recommending approval of adoption of Class 2 and Class 32 
Categorical Exemptions from further environmental review under CEQA and a request for a conditional 
use permit allowing a drive-through restaurant in conjunction with an office/retail building located at 10 
W. Bullard Avenue. Motion carried 4-0-1 with Commissioner Bedsted absent. 
  
ADJOURNMENT AT 6:24 P.M. UNTIL the Planning Commission meeting on March 28, 2024. 
 
 
 
    
Alma Antuna, Chairperson 

5

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



 

 

 

 

 
 

TO: Clovis Planning Commission 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: March 28, 2024 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval - Res. 24-___, A request to approve a second one-
year extension to the approved Vesting Tentative Tract Map 6203 
located on the west side of Thompson Avenue, between Ashlan and 
Dakota Avenues. KB Home, owner/applicant; Shannon Travis, 
representative. 

Staff: Liz Salazar, Assistant Planner 

Recommendation: Approve  

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 24-__, TM6203 Extension 
2. Extension request  
3. Vesting Tentative Tract Map 6203 

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve a second one-year extension of 
Vesting Tentative Tract Map (TM) 6203.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The applicant is requesting a second one-year extension for TM6203, originally approved in 
November 2017. TM6203 is a 19-lot single-family residential development approved 
concurrently with Prezone 2017-015. Approval of this extension would allow the developer to 
continue to work towards completing improvement plans and processing of a final map.  
 
BACKGROUND 

 General Plan Designation: Low Density Residential (2.1 to 4.0 units per acre)  

 Specific Plan Designation: Loma Vista Specific Plan (Low Density Residential) 

 Existing Zoning: R-1 (Single-Family Residential)  

 Lot Size: 4.85 acres 

 Current Land Use: Vacant   
 

R E P O R T  T O  T H E  P L A N N I N G  C O M M I S S I O N  

6

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 Adjacent Land Uses: 
o North: Vacant 
o South: Rural Residential 
o East: Rural Residential 
o West: Rural Residential 

 Previous Entitlements: R2017-15, TM6203, RSPR2021-011, RSPR2021-011A 
 
PROPOSAL AND ANALYSIS 
 
History 
 
TM6203 was approved in November 2017 by the City Council. The Project was approved 
concurrently with R2017-015, granting the pre-zone of the property from the County’s AE-20 to 
the City’s R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zone District.  
 
In January 2018, the City Council approved a resolution of application for the annexation of 
approximately 128 acres of property, inclusive of the subject property. In March 2018, the Fresno 
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) approved Reorganization 281, incorporating the 
Ashlan-Highland Southwest Reorganization territory into the City limits. The territory was 
intended for the development of three separate single-family residential subdivisions and a 
church development. The subject property, a 4.85-acre portion of land west of Thompson 
Avenue, between Ashlan and Dakota Avenues (see Figure 1 below) was approved as TM6203 
(19-lot SFR). The remaining portions of the annexation area were approved as TM6193 (204-lot 
SFR), TM6023 (379-lot SFR), and an approximately 10.61-acre church site development.  
 
In November 2021, Planning and Development Services approved Residential Site Plan Review 
2021-011 and subsequently in December 2022, approved Residential Site Plan Review 2021-
011A for approval of the model homes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIGURE 1: Project Location 
 

7

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 
 

Request 
 
As provided in the Subdivision Map Act and the Clovis Municipal Code, an original approval 
period is granted for three years, after which the applicant may request up to six extensions in 
one-year increments. On August 3, 2020, the City Council approved Emergency Order 2020-16, 
suspending the expiration date of specified land use entitlements including tentative tract maps 
until one year after the emergency order was terminated. Subsequently, Emergency Order 2020-
16 was terminated on March 14, 2022, making the original expiration date for TM6203 June 26, 
2023. In April 2023, the Planning Commission approved the first one-year extension request 
extending the map until June 26, 2024. 
 
The developer is requesting approval of a second one-year extension to TM6203 due to changes 
in market conditions. Per the extension request letter (Attachment 2) an increase to interest 
rates has significantly impacted KB Homes’ ability to build and sell homes. This extension 
request would extend the approval date to June 26, 2025. 
  

Findings of Approval 

Division 7 of chapter 9.102 of the City’s Municipal Code on tentative map filing and processing 
requires that the following findings are made prior to approval of extension:  
 

1. There have been no changes to the provisions of the General Plan, any applicable 
specific plan, or this Development Code applicable to the project since the approval of 
the tentative map. 

Since the approval of TM6203, there have been numerous changes to the Development 
Code, including changes to address modifications, inadvertent omissions, typographical, 
grammatical, and content errors. However, the changes do not impact the approval of an 
extension of TM6203. 

 
2. There have been no changes in the character of the site or its surroundings that affect 

how the policies of the General Plan, any applicable specific plan, or other standards of 
this Development Code apply to the project. 

The property has remained vacant since the original map approval in November 2017. There 
is ongoing development to surrounding projects, specifically within TM6193 and TM6023. 
However, these developments do not affect the approval of TM6203.  

 
3. There have been no changes to the capacities of community resources, including but 

not limited to water supply, sewage treatment or disposal facilities, roads, or schools so 
that there is no longer sufficient remaining capacity to serve the project. 

 

Community resources remain at sufficient capacity to serve the Project site; furthermore, 
the Project has gone through multiple rounds of civil plan review and only has relatively 
minor corrections to make. 

 

 
 

8

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

This request is in conformance with the environmental impact assessment approved for R2017-
015 and TM6203, finding the Project in accordance with the 2014 General Plan Update and 
Environmental Impact Report, Loma Vista Specific Plan and Environmental Impact Report, and 
the Clovis Development Code. Therefore, no further environmental review is required for this 
Project.  
 
The City published notice of this public hearing in The Business Journal on Wednesday March 
13, 2024.  

 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The request to extend the approved TM6203 is in compliance with Chapter 9, Division 7 of the 
City’s Municipal Code and the Subdivision Map Act. For this reason, staff recommends that the 
Planning Commission approve this second one-year extension of TM6203.  
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
None. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 
NOTICE OF HEARING 
Property owners within 1250 feet notified: 26 
 
 

 

 Prepared by:  Liz Salazar, Assistant Planner 

 

 

 Reviewed by:  ______________________________ 

    Dave Merchen 

    City Planner 

9

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Attachment 1 

RESOLUTION 24-___ 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING 

A SECOND ONE-YEAR EXTENSION TO THE APPROVED TM6203 LOCATED ON THE 
WEST SIDE OF THOMPSON AVENUE, BETWEEN ASHLAN AND DAKOTA AVENUES 

 
 WHEREAS, KB Home, 744 P Street, Fresno CA, 93721, has applied for a second 
extension to Vesting Tentative Tract Map 6203; and 
 
 WHEREAS, an extension to Vesting Tentative Tract Map 6203, was filed on February 7, 
2024, and was presented to the Clovis Planning Commission for approval in accordance with 
the Subdivision Map Act of the Government of the State of California and Title 9, Division 7, of 
the Municipal Code and the City of Clovis; and 

 
WHEREAS, a duly noticed hearing was held on March 28, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City published notice of the public hearing in The Business Journal on 

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, and mailed public notices to property owners within 1,250 feet of 
the Property area on Friday, March 8, 2024, more than ten (10) days prior to said hearing; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has given careful consideration to this map 
extension on March 28, 2024, and determines that this request is in conformance with the 
environmental impact assessment approved for R2017-015 and TM6203 finding the Project in 
accordance with the 2014 General Plan Update and the Loma Vista Specific Plan EIRs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has had an opportunity to review and consider the 

entire Administrative Record relating to the Project, which is on file with the Department, and 
reviewed and considered those portions of the Administrative Record determined to be 
necessary to make an informed decision, including, but not necessarily limited to, the staff report, 
the written materials submitted with the request, and the verbal and written testimony and other 
evidence presented during the public hearing, which are incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BASED UPON THE ENTIRE RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLVES AND FINDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Project satisfies the required findings for approval of a time extension, as follows: 
 
a. There have been no changes to the provisions of the General Plan, any applicable 

specific plan, or this Development Code applicable to the project since the approval 
of the tentative map; 
 

b. There have been no changes in the character of the site or its surroundings that affect 
how the policies of the General Plan, any applicable specific plan, or other standards 
of this Development Code apply to the project; 

 
c. There have been no changes to the capacities of community resources, including but 

not limited to water supply, sewage treatment or disposal facilities, roads, or schools 
so that there is no longer sufficient remaining capacity to serve the project; 

 

10

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



2. The second one-year extension of Vesting Tentative Tract Map 6203, be and is hereby 
approved, extending the map until June 26, 2025. 
 

3. The Planning Commission finds that no additional environmental review is required for the 
Project pursuant to prior adoption of subsequent EIRs. 

 
4. The basis for the findings is detailed in the March 28, 2024, staff report, which is hereby 

incorporated by reference, the entire Administrative Record, as well as the evidence and 
comments presented during the public hearing. 
 
 
 

  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 
The foregoing resolution was adopted by the Clovis Planning Commission at its regular meeting 
on March 28, 2024, upon a motion by Commissioner _______, seconded by Commissioner 
_______, and passed by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 24-___ 
DATED: March 28, 2024 
 ________________________________ 
 Alma Antuna, Chair 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________ 
  Renee Mathis, Secretary 
 

 

11

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



February 7, 2024

Liz Salazar 

Planning Division / Assistant Planner
City of Clovis 
1033 Fifth Street  
Clovis, CA 93612 

Subject: Tentative Tract Map 6203 – 1-year Extension Request 

Dear Ms. Salazar,  

KB Home is requesting a 1-year extension to record final map 6203. The current expiration of 
the tentative map is 6/26/24. If granted the 1-year extension, the tentative map would not 
expire until 6/26/25. This is our first request to extend this map.  

KB Home is requesting the extension due to the change in market conditions. Unfortunately, 
with the interest rate increase this has significantly impacted are build pace and sales. We 
already own Cielo Ranch aka tract 6161 and tract 6340 and have been actively selling this past 
year, our plan is to move across the street to tract 6203 once all lots are sold at Cielo Ranch. 

To date, we have gone through 2 plan checks with the city for both our improvement plans 
and final map with a resubmital happening middle of March.  

If you have any questions regarding the request for extension of time or require additional 
information, please do not hesitate to contact me at (559) 908-2164. 

Sincerely, 

Shannon Travis  
Forward Planner, South Valley Business Unit 
srtravis@kbhome.com  

Attachment 2
12

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.

mailto:srtravis@kbhome.com


EXHIBIT B

Attachment 3
13

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

 

 

 

 
 

TO: Clovis Planning Commission 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: March 28, 2024 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval - Res. 24-__, CUP2017-004A, Adopting a Class 1 
Categorical Exemption from further environmental review under CEQA 
and a request to approve a conditional use permit to allow a ±1,545 
square foot expansion of the veterinary hospital located at 1710 Shaw 
Avenue.  

Gobind Gill LLC, owner and applicant; Sundeep Grewal, Studio G+S 
Architects, representative.  

Staff: Liz Salazar, Assistant Planner 
Recommendation: Approve  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 24-__, CUP2017-004A 
2. Site Plan, Elevations, and Floor Plan 
3. Applicant’s Operational Statement  
4. Correspondence from Commenting Agencies 

  
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt the categorical exemption and approve 
the conditional use permit for a veterinary hospital expansion, subject to the conditions of 
approval listed as Attachment 1A.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
As shown in Figure 1 below, the applicant is requesting approval of a conditional use permit 
(CUP) to allow the expansion of an existing veterinary hospital known as Armstong Pet Hospital 
located near the southwest corner of Shaw and Fowler Avenues within the Shaw Avenue Plaza 
commercial center. CUP2017-004A is a request for a ±1,545 square foot expansion to the 
existing ±5,800 square foot building (“Project”). Approval of this request would allow the 
applicant to proceed with a site plan review application. Although the site plan review process is 
reviewed administratively at the staff level, a conceptual site plan has been provided as 
Attachment 2 for informational purposes. 

R E P O R T  T O  T H E  P L A N N I N G  C O M M I S S I O N  

14

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 
 
 

 
FIGURE 1 

Project Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 General Plan Designation:  G-C (General Commercial) 

 Existing Zoning:  C-2 (Community Commercial) 

 Total Project Parcel:   ±0.82 acres 

 Current Land Use:  Veterinary Hospital 

 Adjacent Land Uses: 
o North:   Jefferson Elementary School 
o East:   Commercial Shopping Center 
o South:   Senior Apartments 
o West:   Assisted Living Facility 

 Previous Entitlements:  SPR2006-16, CUP2017-004 & SPR2017-13  
   

The commercial center began development in 2006 with construction of the existing Walgreens. 
Throughout the years, the center has continued development which now also includes The 
Human Bean and Armstrong Pet Hospital. The approval of this CUP would allow the existing 
veterinary hospital building to be expanded with a new ±1,545 square foot addition. 
 
PROPOSAL AND ANALYSIS 
The applicant is requesting approval of this CUP to allow for the construction of a ±1,545 square 
foot expansion of Armstrong Pet Hospital. Armstrong Pet Hospital has operated at the subject 
location since 2019 without record of incident or violation of the previous CUP. Per the 

15

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 
 
 

applicant’s operational statement (see Attachment 3), the proposed expansion will allow the 
veterinary hospital to cater to an increase in client demand. The Project proposes the addition 
of four (4) exam rooms, one (1)  office space, one (1) surgery room, one (1) restroom, an animal 
ward, and storage space. Armstong Pet Hospital will continue to operate between the hours of 
9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. This CUP will carry over the previous conditions of approval allowing 
operation of the veterinary hospital between 8:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. daily. The Project proposes 
to retain the existing number of employees. 
 
Circulation and Parking  
The Project does not propose any modification to the established vehicle access points. As 
shown on the conceptual site plan (see Attachment 2), the Project site would be accessed via 
the two (2) existing points of ingress/egress to the commercial center along Shaw and Fowler 
Avenues.  
 
Parking is calculated cumulatively with the shopping center at a rate of five (5) stalls per 1,000 
square feet. The commercial center’s parking and off-site improvements were constructed as 
part of the first phase of development. In total, the commercial center currently requires 113 
parking stalls and 131 stalls are provided. The commercial center has one “build ready” pad 
remaining. At the time of future development of the remaining pad, parking will be evaluated to 
ensure sufficient availability as part of entitlement processing.   
 
Elevations 
The applicant proposes a single-story expansion that will match in color and material of the 
existing building. The proposed building height is cohesive with the existing commercial 
development within the shopping center. 
 
Review and Comments by Agencies 
The Project was distributed to all City Divisions as well as outside agencies, including Caltrans, 
Clovis Unified School District, Fresno Irrigation District, Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control 
District, AT&T, PG&E, and the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District.   
 
Comments received are attached (see Attachment 4) only if the agency has provided concerns, 
conditions, or mitigation measures. Routine responses and comment letters are placed in the 
administrative record and provided to the applicant for their records.  
 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)  
The City has determined that this Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guideline 
Section 15301 (Class 1 – Existing Facilities) and the Project would not trigger any of  the 
exceptions identified under CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2.  
 
The Class 1 categorical exemption exempts projects that consists of the operation, repair, 
maintenance, permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private 
structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no 
expansion of existing or former use. One such example identified under the Class 1 Categorical 
Exemption is the addition to existing structures that would not result in an expansion of more 
than 2,500 square feet. (Cal. Code Regs., Tit. 14, § 15301, subd. (e)(1).)  Here, the Project 

16

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 
 
 

would only result in an expansion to the existing facilities by ±1,545 square feet, and therefore 
qualifies for the Class 1 Categorical Exemption.  
 
The exceptions identified in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 identify further review of an 
exemption by the project’s potential to result in a cumulative impact, significant effect, proximity 
to a scenic highway, location on or within the vicinity of a hazardous waste site, and/or the 
potential to negatively impact a historical resource. Based on staff’s review, these exceptions 
would not be triggered by the proposed Project. Therefore, a Notice of Exemption has been 
completed. Staff will file the notice with the County Clerk if the Commission adopts the 
categorical exemption and approves the Project.  
 
The City published notice of this public hearing in The Business Journal on Wednesday, March 
13, 2024.   
 
Consistency with General Plan Goals and Policies 
Staff has evaluated the Project in light of the General Plan Economic Development goals and 
policies.  The following goal and policy reflect Clovis' desire of commitment to growth and to 
preserve the quality of life in existing neighborhoods ensuring the development of neighborhoods 
with an equal quality of life. This Project will encourage and foster economic opportunities that 
support jobs for the area and provide the community with a necessary service.  
 
Economic Development Element: 
 

Goal 3: Distinctive commercial destinations, corridors, and centers that provide a 
wide variety of unique shopping, dining, and entertainment opportunities for 
residents and visitors. 

 
Policy 3.2 Convenience goods and services. Encourage businesses providing 

convenience goods and services to locate in retail centers in neighborhoods 
and communities throughout the city. 

 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
CUP2017-004A is consistent with the goals and policies of the General Plan, Clovis Municipal 
Code and the C-2 (Community Commercial) Zone District. Furthermore, the Project will allow 
the business owner to better serve their clientele, and will not substantially impact traffic, sewer, 
water, or other public services. Based on the findings, staff is recommending that the Planning 
Commission adopt the categorical exemption and approve CUP2017-004A, subject to the 
conditions of approval listed as Attachment 1A. 
 
The findings to consider when making a decision on a conditional use permit application include:  
 

1. The proposed use is conditionally allowed within and would not impair the integrity 
and character of, the subject zoning district and is in compliance with all of the 
applicable provisions of this Development Code. 

 
The subject Project is an allowed use within the C-2 Zone District with an approved 
conditional use permit. The Project will be in compliance with applicable provisions 

17

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 
 
 

and development standards identified in the Clovis Municipal Code, and will be subject 
to the conditions of approval provided in Attachment A to the Resolution attached 
hereto as Attachment 1. This Project will undergo site plan review (SPR) to further 
ensure that the site layout and development standards are met. During the SPR 
review, the height, setbacks, parking standards, and aesthetics will be reviewed to 
ensure that applicable standards are met.  
 

2. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and any applicable Specific 
Plan. 

 
This Project is consistent with the 2014 Clovis General Plan. The underlying General 
Plan land use designation of General Commercial would remain unchanged, and the 
proposed use is acceptable within this underlying land use designation, according to 
the 2014 Clovis General Plan. 

 
3. The design, location, size, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are 

compatible with the existing and future land uses and would not create significant 
noise, traffic, or other conditions or situations that may be objectionable or detrimental 
to other allowed uses operating nearby or adverse to the public interest, health, safety, 
convenience, or welfare of the City. 

 
The Project proposes an addition to an existing veterinary hospital located within an 
established commercial center. The proposed use is compatible with the existing 
uses. The Project complements the commercial uses and will not be out of the ordinary 
as it relates to the character of the surrounding area. Further, the Project will maintain 
the general circulation pattern by retaining all existing points of access. 

 
4. The subject parcel is physically suitable in size and shape for the type and 

density/intensity of use being proposed. 
 

The Project will occupy and operate within the existing site that is physically suitable 
in size and shape and has the infrastructure in place to support it. The Project will be 
required to comply with all conditions from Public Utilities and Engineering during the 
SPR process, which will further ensure the site is suitable for the proposed uses.  
 

5. There are adequate provisions for public access, water, sanitation, and public utilities 
and services to ensure that the proposed use would not be detrimental to public health 
and safety. 
 
The Project will comply with all applicable public health standards. Further, as an 
addition to the existing development, adequate provisions (i.e. water, sanitation, 
utilities, etc.) are readily available and accessible for the proposed use. Final approval 
of public utilities and service details will occur during engineering review if approved 
and the Project moves forward. This review will ensure utility services are sufficient to 
accommodate the Project and impose conditions for upgrades as needed. 
 

18

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 
 
 

6. The proposed project has been reviewed in compliance with the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and there would be no potential 
significant negative effects upon environmental quality and natural resources that 
would not be properly mitigated and monitored, unless findings are made in 
compliance with CEQA. 

 
As identified above under the “California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)” section 
of this staff report, the Project was determined to qualify for a Class 1 Categorical 
Exemption from further environmental review. Therefore, the Project has been 
reviewed in compliance with CEQA.   
 
 

ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
If approved, the Project will continue with site plan review.  
 
NOTICE OF HEARING 
Property owners within 550 feet notified: 32      
 
 

 Prepared by:  Liz Salazar, Assistant Planner 

 
 

 Reviewed by:  ______________________________ 

    Dave Merchen 

    City Planner 

19

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



Attachment 1 

 
RESOLUTION 24-___ 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS TO ADOPT A 

CLASS 1 CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION FROM FURTHER ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
UNDER CEQA, AND APPROVAL OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 2017-004A TO ALLOW 

FOR AN EXPANSION OF THE VETERINARY HOSPITAL LOCATED AT 1710 SHAW 
AVENUE  

 

 WHEREAS, Gobind Gill LLC (Applicant), 1710 Shaw Avenue, Clovis, CA 93611, applied 
for Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 2017-004A to allow for a ±1,545 square foot expansion of the 
veterinary hospital located at 1710 Shaw Avenue (southwest corner of Shaw and Fowler Avenues 
with the Shaw Avenue Plaza Commercial Center) in the City of Clovis (“Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City published notice of the public hearing in The Business Journal on 

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, and mailed public notices to property owners within 550 feet of the 
Property area on Friday, March 8, 2024, more than ten (10) days prior to said hearing; and  

 
WHEREAS, a duly noticed public hearing was held on March 28, 2024; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission considered the CEQA analysis outlined in the staff 

report and elsewhere in the Administrative Record, which determined the Project meets the 
requirements of the Class 1 (Existing Facilities) Categorical Exemption pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines section 15301; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has had an opportunity to review and consider the 

entire Administrative Record relating to the Project, which is on file with the Planning and 
Development Services Department, and reviewed and considered those portions of the 
Administrative Record determined to be necessary to make an informed decision, including, but 
not necessarily limited to, the staff report, the written materials submitted with the request, and 
the verbal and written testimony and other evidence presented during the public hearing, and the 
conditions of approval attached as Attachment A to this Resolution, which are incorporated 
herein by this reference. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BASED UPON THE ENTIRE RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLVES AND FINDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Planning Commission finds that the Project is categorically exempt from further 
environmental review under CEQA pursuant to the Class 1 (Existing Facilities) Categorical 
Exemption under CEQA Guidelines section 15301, and hereby adopts said Class 1 
Categorical Exemption. 
 

2. The Project satisfies the required findings for approval of a conditional use permit, as 
follows: 
 

a. The proposed use is conditionally allowed within, and would not impair the integrity 
and character of, the subject zoning district and is in compliance with all of the 
applicable provisions of the City’s Development Code. 

 

b. The proposed use is consistent with the City’s General Plan. 

20

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 

 
c. The design, location, size, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are 

compatible with the existing and future land uses and would not create significant 
noise, traffic, or other conditions or situations that may be objectionable or 
detrimental to other allowed uses operating nearby or adverse to the public interest, 
health, safety, convenience, or welfare of the City. 
 

d. There are adequate provisions for public access, water, sanitation, and public 
utilities and services to ensure that the proposed use would not be detrimental to 
public health and safety. 
 

e. The subject parcel is physically suitable in size and shape for the type and 
density/intensity of use being proposed. 

 
f. The proposed project has been reviewed in compliance with the provisions of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and the Commission has adopted a 
Class 1 Categorical Exemption from further environmental review. 

 
3. The Planning Commission could not make the findings necessary for approval of 

CUP2017-004A without the conditions of approval set forth in Attachment A to this 
Resolution. 
 

4. CUP2017-004A is hereby approved with incorporation of the conditions of approval 
(Attachment A to this Resolution). 

 
5. The basis for the findings is detailed in the March 28, 2024, staff report, which is hereby 

incorporated by reference, the entire Administrative Record, as well as the evidence and 
comments presented during the public hearing. 

 
*  *  *  *  *  * 

 
 The foregoing resolution was adopted by the Clovis Planning Commission at its regular 
meeting on March 28, 2024, upon a motion by Commissioner _______, seconded by 
Commissioner _______, and passed by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 24-___ 
DATED: March 28, 2024 
 ________________________________ 
 Alma Antuna, Chair 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________ 
  Renee Mathis, Secretary 

21

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



Attachment A 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
CUP2017-004A 

 
PLANNING DIVISION CONDITIONS 

(Liz Salazar, Division Representative – (559) 324-2305) 
 
1. This Conditional Use Permit approval is to allow the expansion of an existing 

veterinary hospital located at 1710 Shaw Avenue. 
 

2. This Conditional Use Permit does not permit or otherwise allow for the operation of 
the site and/or uses other than those explicitly described in the accompanying staff 
report from the March 28, 2024, Planning Commission hearing.  

 
3. This Conditional Use Permit is not transferable to another location. 
 

4. A separate site plan review (SPR) and approval shall be required prior to the 
construction of any structures and/or prior to any site modifications and shall comply 
with development standards prescribed for the General Commercial land use 
designation, C-2 (Community Commercial) Zone District, Shaw Avenue Specific Plan, 
and other applicable standards as determined by the Planning Division during the SPR 
review process.  

 

5. The veterinary hospital shall be completely enclosed with the building. Outdoor 
housing of animals is prohibited.  

 

6. There shall be no incineration permitted at this location. 
 

7. This use shall include the medical treatment or care of household pets.  Large animal 
care shall not be included as part of this facility. 

 
8. The hours of operation shall be from 8:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. daily. 

 

9. Boarding of animals shall be prohibited. 
 
10. All exterior lighting shall not interfere with the driving safety of vehicular traffic per 

Planning Division Standards. 
 

11. The applicant shall keep free and clear access between the subject site and adjacent 
parcels/businesses free and clear of obstructions. Any delivery vehicles shall not stop, 
park, load, or unload merchandise in a manner that could obstruct ingress or egress 
to adjacent business(es). 

 

12. The applicant shall operate in a manner that complies with the Clovis Municipal Code 
(CMC) so that it does not generate noise, odor, or vibration that adversely affects any 
adjacent properties. 
 

13. All signs shall comply with the City of Clovis Sign Ordinance.  All exterior signs and/or 
signs on the inside of the building, which are intended to be viewed from the outside, 
shall require separate sign permits prior to installation. (CMC § 9.34.010).  

22

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 

 
 

14. Any future request to expand and/or modify the use shall be subject to an amendment 
to the CUP. 
 

15. An abandonment or cessation of this use for a period exceeding 90 days shall cause 
this approval to be scheduled for revocation. 

 

16. Applicant must have on file a current City of Clovis Business License prior to operation. 
 

17. CUP2017-004A may be reviewed at any time for compliance with the conditions of 
approval. Clovis Planning staff may conduct a review of the use in regards to 
conditions of approval and present findings of this review to the City Planner or the 
Planning Commission. 

 

FRESNO METROPOLITAN FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT 
(Robert Villalobos, FMFCD Department Representative – (559) 456-3292) 

 
18. The applicant shall refer to the attached Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District 

correspondence. If the list is not attached, please contact the District for the list of 
requirements. 

 
COUNTY OF FRESNO HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

(Kevin Tsuda, County of Fresno Health Representative – (559) 600-3271) 
 

19. The applicant shall refer to the attached Fresno County Health Department 
correspondence. If the list is not attached, please contact the agency for the list of 
requirements.  

 
FRESNO IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

(Chris Lundeen, FID Department Representative – (559) 233-7161) 
 

20. The applicant shall refer to the attached Fresno Irrigation District correspondence. If 
the list is not attached, please contact the District for the list of requirements. 

23

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



E

79'-3"

Property line S 89°42'20" W  143.46'

sewer & storm
easement

water easement

Shaw Avenue

(n) conc. walkway
max. slope 1:20
max. cross slope ,1/4:1

(n) landscaped area

(e) lighting standard, typ

(e) street light, typ.

PED & LS easement

(n) trash enclosure

(e) landscaped area

(n) conc. walkway
max slope 1:20

(n) tree, see
landscape drawings

(e) trees to be removed
within FID's easement
area (4 total)

(e) fire hydrant

(e) 5'-0" high steel fenc

approx. c.l. of 10'-0"
PGE easement strip

(e) tree, typ.

fire lane marking: (e) curb
to be painted red per
CFD standar #1.1, typ.

fire lane marking: (e)
curb to be painted red
per CFD standar #1.1

fire lane marking: (e)
curb to be painted red
per CFD standar #1.1

(e) FDC to be
repainted per
CFD standar #2.2

(e) PIV to be repainted
per CFD standar #2.2

restripe (e) parking stal
to 17' deep
min. stall: 10' x 17' w/ 3
overhang
stalls 23 to 40
min. aisle width: 26'

designated loading zon
per planning requireme
12' x 40' min.

(e) site ingress and egress

(e) site ingress
and egress 5'-0"

SPR Submittal: 11-20-2023

17
10

 S
ha

w
 A

ve
. 

C
lo

vi
s,

 C
A 

93
61

1
AP

N
: 4

99
-0

31
-5

8

S.G

SSG

A

Sheet Contents:

Sheet

These designs, drawings and specifications
are the property of Studio GS, Inc.. Any use in
part or in whole without the written permission
of Studio GS, Inc. is prohibited by law.

2023 by Studio GS, Inc.C

C

SSG

R C
L

W

2223 Fifth St.
Berkeley, CA 94710

Ph: 510.548.7448
info@sgsarch.com
www.sgsarch.com

Project No:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Scale:

R

E

D

No. C30114

P
E

SU

ES

EC

N

IL

E
E T

A

DN

L

AI

O

NR

A

FO ICA

S

F

Exp.12.31.2023

E

T

T

IH T

Revisions:

AR
M

ST
R

O
N

G
 P

ET
H

O
SP

IT
AL

 E
XP

AN
SI

O
N

17-06-353

Existing Site Plan

North

A0.1

Existing Site Plan

1/16" = 1'-0"

1
Attachment 2

24

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



E

64'-3"

Property line S 89°42'20" W  143.46'

Shaw Avenue(e) street light, typ.

(e) landscaped area

(n) conc. walkway
max slope 1:20

(e) site ingress and egress

(e) site ingress
and egress 5'-0"

(E) landscaped area

(E) landscaped area

(E) concrete sidewalks,
walkways and courtyard

(E) building footprint

(N) building footprint

SPR Submittal: 11-20-2023

17
10

 S
ha

w
 A

ve
. 

C
lo

vi
s,

 C
A 

93
61

1
AP

N
: 4

99
-0

31
-5

8

S.G

SSG

A

Sheet Contents:

Sheet

These designs, drawings and specifications
are the property of Studio GS, Inc.. Any use in
part or in whole without the written permission
of Studio GS, Inc. is prohibited by law.

2023 by Studio GS, Inc.C

C

SSG

R C
L

W

2223 Fifth St.
Berkeley, CA 94710

Ph: 510.548.7448
info@sgsarch.com
www.sgsarch.com

Project No:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Scale:

R

E

D

No. C30114

P
E

SU

ES

EC

N

IL

E
E T

A

DN

L

AI

O

NR

A

FO ICA

S

F

Exp.12.31.2023

E

T

T

IH T

Revisions:

AR
M

ST
R

O
N

G
 P

ET
H

O
SP

IT
AL

 E
XP

AN
SI

O
N

17-06-353

Proposed Site Plan

North

A0.2

Proposed Site Plan

1/16" = 1'-0"

1

As-Builts

25

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



20
'-9

"

14
'-0

"

metal screening

building signage,
aluminum

stucco

stucco

aluminum windows

aluminum storefront
window system

metal awning

metal siding

f.f.
173.50

parapet
194.25

parapet
187.50

address

aluminum storefront
window system

AABBEEFF CCDD

light fixture
ARMSTRONG PET HOSPITAL

NN

BB

EE

1710 

2299 88 77 66 55 44 33 11

f.f.
173 50

parapet
194.25

parapet
187.50

KK

DD

scupper and
downspout, typ.

ACCESSIBLE 
ENTRANCE

No
Smoking

metal siding

clerestory windows

metal awning

bi-parting entry doors
anodized aluminum

metal screening

aluminum window,
typ.

stucco

metal siding

hvac equip. w/
perforated metal screen

22 9988776655443311

11

f.f.
173.50

parapet
194.25

parapet
187.50

ISA symbol at door

metal awning

scupper and
downspout, typ.

parapet
186.33

f.f.
173.50

parapet
194.25

parapet
187.50

metal awning

no smoking sign

CC

MMMM FF

metal siding

clerestory windows

stucco

aluminum door
and windows

metal awning
parapet
186.33

AA FF

33

f.f.
173.50

parapet
194.25

parapet
187.50

MM

BB EEDDCC

SPR Submittal: 11-20-2023

17
10

 S
ha

w
 A

ve
. 

C
lo

vi
s,

 C
A 

93
61

1
AP

N
: 4

99
-0

31
-5

8

S.G

SSG

A

Sheet Contents:

Sheet

These designs, drawings and specifications
are the property of Studio GS, Inc.. Any use in
part or in whole without the written permission
of Studio GS, Inc. is prohibited by law.

2023 by Studio GS, Inc.C

C

SSG

R C
L

W

2223 Fifth St.
Berkeley, CA 94710

Ph: 510.548.7448
info@sgsarch.com
www.sgsarch.com

Project No:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Scale:

R

E

D

No. C30114

P
E

SU

ES

EC

N

IL

E
E T

A

DN

L

AI

O

NR

A

FO ICA

S

F

Exp.12.31.2023

E

T

T

IH T

Revisions:

AR
M

ST
R

O
N

G
 P

ET
H

O
SP

IT
AL

 E
XP

AN
SI

O
N

17-06-353

3/16" = 1'-0"

Existing Exterior Elevations

A1.2

Existing North Elevation (Front)
2

Existing West Elevation (Right Side)
1

Existing South Elevation (Rear)
3

Existing East Elevation (Left Side)
4

26

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



6'
-0

"

14
'-0

"

aluminum storefront
window system

metal siding

f.f.
173.50

parapet
194.25

parapet
187.50

BBCCDDEE

ARMSTRONG PET HOSPITAL

AA

NN

1710 

trash enclosure
in foreground

2299 88 77 66 55
44

11

f.f.
173 50

parapet
194.25

parapet
187.50

scupper and downspout, typ.

hvac equip. w/
perforated metal screen

33

(n)

14
'-0

"

trash
enclosure in
foreground

parapet
186.33

BB EE

parapet
194.25

parapet
187.50

(n) addition

AA CC DD

f.f.
173.50

SPR Submittal: 11-20-2023

17
10

 S
ha

w
 A

ve
. 

C
lo

vi
s,

 C
A 

93
61

1
AP

N
: 4

99
-0

31
-5

8

S.G

SSG

A

Sheet Contents:

Sheet

These designs, drawings and specifications
are the property of Studio GS, Inc.. Any use in
part or in whole without the written permission
of Studio GS, Inc. is prohibited by law.

2023 by Studio GS, Inc.C

C

SSG

R C
L

W

2223 Fifth St.
Berkeley, CA 94710

Ph: 510.548.7448
info@sgsarch.com
www.sgsarch.com

Project No:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Scale:

R

E

D

No. C30114

P
E

SU

ES

EC

N

IL

E
E T

A

DN

L

AI

O

NR

A

FO ICA

S

F

Exp.12.31.2023

E

T

T

IH T

Revisions:

AR
M

ST
R

O
N

G
 P

ET
H

O
SP

IT
AL

 E
XP

AN
SI

O
N

17-06-353

3/16" = 1'-0"

Proposed Exterior Elevations

A3.1

Proposed North Elevation (Front)
2

Proposed West Elevation (Right Side)
1

Proposed South Elevation (Rear)
3

New building addition

Proposed Addition
4

(n) addition

(n) addition

area of new addition

Existing Building
5

1. New building addition shall match existing construction
and architectural style

2. All new material shall match existing material and color
scheme

Project Note:

27

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



AA

BB

CC

EE

FF

DD

SPR Submittal: 11-20-2023

17
10

 S
ha

w
 A

ve
. 

C
lo

vi
s,

 C
A 

93
61

1
AP

N
: 4

99
-0

31
-5

8

A1.1

3/16" = 1'-0"

S.G

SSG

A

Sheet Contents:

Sheet

These designs, drawings and specifications
are the property of Studio GS, Inc.. Any use in
part or in whole without the written permission
of Studio GS, Inc. is prohibited by law.

2023 by Studio GS, Inc.C

C

SSG

R C
L

W

2223 Fifth St.
Berkeley, CA 94710

Ph: 510.548.7448
info@sgsarch.com
www.sgsarch.com

Project No:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Scale:

R

E

D

No. C30114

P
E

SU

ES

EC

N

IL

E
E T

A

DN

L

AI

O

NR

A

FO ICA

S

F

Exp.12.31.2023

E

T

T

IH T

Revisions:

Existing Floor Plan
1

Existing Floor Plan

AR
M

ST
R

O
N

G
 P

ET
H

O
SP

IT
AL

 E
XP

AN
SI

O
N

17-06-353

North

Area of new addition

28

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



22 9988776655443311

SPR Submittal: 11-20-2023

17
10

 S
ha

w
 A

ve
. 

C
lo

vi
s,

 C
A 

93
61

1
AP

N
: 4

99
-0

31
-5

8

S.G

SSG

A

Sheet Contents:

Sheet

These designs, drawings and specifications
are the property of Studio GS, Inc.. Any use in
part or in whole without the written permission
of Studio GS, Inc. is prohibited by law.

2023 by Studio GS, Inc.C

C

SSG

R C
L

W

2223 Fifth St.
Berkeley, CA 94710

Ph: 510.548.7448
info@sgsarch.com
www.sgsarch.com

Project No:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Scale:

R

E

D

No. C30114

P
E

SU

ES

EC

N

IL

E
E T

A

DN

L

AI

O

NR

A

FO ICA

S

F

Exp.12.31.2023

E

T

T

IH T

Revisions:

AR
M

ST
R

O
N

G
 P

ET
H

O
SP

IT
AL

 E
XP

AN
SI

O
N

17-06-353

A2.1

3/16" = 1'-0"

1

Proposed Floor Plan

New building addition

29

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



Attachment 3
30

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



PROJECT NO:

APN:

ADDRESS:

SENT:

2017-004A

1710 SHAW AVE.

499-031-58 January 22, 2024

PUBLIC AGENCY

LIZ SALAZAR
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
CITY OF CLOVIS
1033 FIFTH STREET
CLOVIS, CA 93612

DEVELOPER

SUNDEEP GREWAL
2223 5TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710

* The Development Review Service Charge shown above is associated with  CL SPR 2017-013A2 and is currently proposed to develop in conjunction with this permit. 
Payment for this entitlement shall satisfy the amount due on the associated permits.

Drainage Area(s) Preliminary Fee(s)

3D $0.00

Development Review 
Service Charge(s) Fee(s)

NOR Review * $50.00 To be paid prior to release of District comments to Public 
Agency and Developer.

Grading Plan Review * $0.00 Amount to be submitted with first grading plan submittal.

Total Drainage Fee:    $0.00 Total Service Charge:    $50.00

The proposed development will generate storm runoff which produces potentially significant environmental impacts and which 
must be properly discharged and mitigated pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act and the National Environmental 
Policy Act. The District in cooperation with the City and County has developed and adopted the Storm Drainage and Flood 
Control Master Plan. Compliance with and implementation of this Master Plan by this development project will satisfy the 
drainage related CEQA/NEPA impact of the project mitigation requirements.         

Pursuant to the District’s Development Review Fee Policy, the subject project shall pay review fees for issuance of this Notice of 
Requirements (NOR) and any plan submittals requiring the District’s reviews. The NOR fee shall be paid to the District by 
Developer before the Notice of Requirement will be submitted to the City. The Grading Plan fee shall be paid upon first 
submittal. The Storm Drain Plan fee shall be paid prior to return/pick up of first submittal.         
    
The proposed development shall pay drainage fees pursuant to the Drainage Fee Ordinance prior to issuance of a building permit 
at the rates in effect at the time of such issuance. The fee indicated above is valid through 2/28/24 based on the site plan 
submitted to the District on 1/03/24 Contact FMFCD for a revised fee in cases where changes are made in the proposed site plan 
which materially alter the proposed impervious area.

Considerations which may affect the fee obligation(s) or the timing or form of fee payment: 

a.) Fees related to undeveloped or phased portions of the project may be deferrable.

b.)
Fees may be calculated based on the actual percentage of runoff if different than that typical for the zone district under 
which the development is being undertaken and if permanent provisions are made to assure that the site remains in that 
configuration.

c.) Creditable storm drainage facilities may be constructed, or required to be constructed in lieu of paying fees.

d.) The actual cost incurred in constructing Creditable drainage system facilities is credited against the drainage fee 
obligation.

e.) When the actual costs incurred in constructing Creditable facilities exceeds the drainage fee obligation, reimbursement 
will be made for the excess costs from future fees collected by the District from other development.

f.)
Any request for a drainage fee refund requires the entitlement cancellation and a written request addressed to the 
General Manager of the District within 60 days from payment of the fee. A non refundable $300 Administration fee or 
5% of the refund whichever is less will be retained without fee credit.

5469 E. OLIVE - FRESNO, CA 93727 - (559) 456-3292 - FAX (559) 456-3194

FRESNO METROPOLITAN FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT
NOTICE OF REQUIREMENTS

File No. 210.433

Page 1 of 3

Attachment 4

31

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



Approval of this development shall be conditioned upon compliance with these District Requirements.

1.    X   a. Drainage from the site shall REMAIN AS EXISTING.

       b. Grading and drainage patterns shall be as identified on Exhibit No. 

       c. The grading and drainage patterns shown on the site plan conform to the adopted Storm Drainage and 
Flood Control Master Plan. 

2. The proposed development shall construct and/or dedicate Storm Drainage and Flood Control Master Plan facilities 
located within the development or necessitated by any off-site improvements required by the approving agency:

       Developer shall construct facilities as shown on Exhibit No. 1 as  

   X   None required. 

3. The following final improvement plans and information shall be submitted to the District for review prior to final 
development approval:

       Grading Plan 

       Street Plan 

       Storm Drain Plan 

       Water & Sewer Plan 

       Final Map 

       Drainage Report (to be submitted with tentative map) 

       Other 

   X   None Required 

4. Availability of drainage facilities:

   X   a. Permanent drainage service is available provided the developer can verify to the satisfaction of the City 
that runoff can be safely conveyed to the Master Plan inlet(s). 

       b. The construction of facilities required by Paragraph No. 2 hereof will provide permanent drainage service. 

       c. Permanent drainage service will not be available.  The District recommends temporary facilities until 
permanent service is available. 

       d. See Exhibit No. 2. 

5. The proposed development:

       Appears to be located within a 100 year flood prone area as designated on the latest Flood Insurance Rate 
Maps available to the District, necessitating appropriate floodplain management action. (See attached 
Floodplain Policy.) 

   X   Does not appear to be located within a flood prone area. 

6.        The subject site contains a portion of a canal or pipeline that is used to manage recharge, storm water, 
and/or flood flows. The existing capacity must be preserved as part of site development. Additionally, site 
development may not interfere with the ability to operate and maintain the canal or pipeline. 

5469 E. OLIVE - FRESNO, CA 93727 - (559) 456-3292 - FAX (559) 456-3194

FRESNO METROPOLITAN FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT
NOTICE OF REQUIREMENTS

Page 2 of 3

32

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



7. The Federal Clean Water Act and the State General Permits for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction 
and Industrial Activities (State General Permits) require developers of construction projects disturbing one or more 
acres, and discharges associated with industrial activity not otherwise exempt from National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permitting, to implement controls to reduce pollutants, prohibit the discharge of waters 
other than storm water to the municipal storm drain system, and meet water quality standards.  These requirements 
apply both to pollutants generated during construction, and to those which may be generated by operations at the 
development after construction.

       a. State General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction Activities, effective July 1, 
2010, as amended.  A State General Construction Permit is required for all clearing, grading, and 
disturbances to the ground that result in soil disturbance of at least one acre (or less than one acre) if part 
of a larger common plan of development or sale).  Permittees are required to: submit a Notice of Intent 
and Permit Registration Documents to be covered and must pay a permit fee to the State Water Resources 
Control Board (State Board), develop and implement a storm water pollution prevention plan, eliminate 
non-storm water discharges, conduct routine site inspections, train employees in permit compliance, and 
complete an annual certification of compliance.  

       b. State General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Industrial Activities, April, 2014 
(available at the District Office).  A State General Industrial Permit is required for specific types of 
industries described in the NPDES regulations or by Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) code.  The 
following categories of industries are generally required to secure an industrial permit: manufacturing; 
trucking; recycling; and waste and hazardous waste management.  Specific exemptions exist for 
manufacturing activities which occur entirely indoors.  Permittees are required to: submit a Notice of 
Intent to be covered and must pay a permit fee to the State Water Resources Control Board, develop and 
implement a storm water pollution prevention plan, eliminate non-storm water discharges, conduct routine 
site inspections, train employees in permit compliance, sample storm water runoff and test it for pollutant 
indicators, and annually submit a report to the State Board. 

       c. The proposed development is encouraged to select and implement storm water quality controls 
recommended in the Fresno-Clovis Storm Water Quality Management Construction and Post-Construction 
Guidelines (available at the District Office) to meet the requirements of the State General Permits, 
eliminate the potential for non-storm water to enter the municipal storm drain system, and where possible 
minimize contact with materials which may contaminate storm water runoff. 

8. A requirement of the District may be appealed by filing a written notice of appeal with the Secretary of the District 
within ten days of the date of this Notice of Requirements. 

9. The District reserves the right to modify, reduce or add to these requirements, or revise fees, as necessary to 
accommodate changes made in the proposed development by the developer or requirements made by other agencies.

10.    X   See Exhibit No. 2 for additional comments, recommendations and requirements. 

Debbie Campbell Robert Villalobos

Design Engineer, RCE Engineering Tech III

Digitally signed by Debbie Campbell Date: 1/22/2024 12:02:16 PM Digitally signed by Robert Villalobos Date: 1/5/2024 10:28:51 AM

5469 E. OLIVE - FRESNO, CA 93727 - (559) 456-3292 - FAX (559) 456-3194

FRESNO METROPOLITAN FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT
NOTICE OF REQUIREMENTS

Page 3 of 3

33

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



In an effort to improve storm runoff quality, outdoor storage areas shall be constructed and 
maintained such that material that may generate contaminants will be prevented from contact with 
rainfall and runoff and thereby prevent the conveyance of contaminants in runoff into the storm 
drain system.

The District encourages, but does not require that roof drains from non-residential development be 
constructed such that they are directed onto and through a landscaped grassy swale area to filter 
out pollutants from roof runoff.

Development No. CL   CUP  No. 2017-004A

OTHER REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT NO. 2

34

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



County of Fresno
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Environmental Health Division

Promotion, preservation and protection of the community’s health
1221 Fulton Street /P. O. Box 11867, Fresno, CA 93775

(559) 600-3357 • FAX (559) 455-4646
The County of Fresno is an Equal Employment Opportunity Employer

www.co.fresno.ca.us • www.fcdph.org

January 19, 2023
LU0022496
2604

Liz Salazar, Assistant Planner
City of Clovis
Planning and Development Services Department
1033 Fifth Street
Clovis, CA  93612

Dear Ms. Salazar:

PROJECT NUMBER: CUP2017-004A

CUP2017-004A; a request to amend a previously-approved conditional use permit to expand the
operations of an existing veterinary hospital at 1710 Shaw Avenue. The site improvements
associated with this proposed expansion were recently distributed under SPR2017-013A2.

APN: 499-031-58                          ZONING: C-2                         ADDRESS: 1710 Shaw Avenue

Recommended Conditions of Approval:

 Facilities that use and/or store hazardous materials and/or hazardous wastes shall meet the
requirements set forth in the California Health and Safety Code (HSC), Division 20, Chapter 6.95,
and the California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 22, Division 4.5. Your proposed business will
handle hazardous materials and/or hazardous waste and will be required to submit a Hazardous
Materials Business Plan pursuant to the HSC, Division 20, Chapter 6.95 (http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/).
Contact the Fresno County Hazmat Compliance Program at (559) 600-3271 for more information.

 The proposed project has the potential to expose nearby residents to elevated noise levels.
Consideration should be given to your City’s municipal code.

REVIEWED BY:

Kevin Tsuda, R.E.H.S.
Environmental Health Specialist II (559) 600-33271

KT

cc: Cindy Sauls (assigns)- Environmental Health Division (CT. 58.01)
Sundeep Grewal- Applicant (sunny@sgsarch.com)

35

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



36

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



37

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



38

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



39

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



40

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



41

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



42

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



43

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



44

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



45

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



46

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



47

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



48

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



49

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



50

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



51

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



52

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



53

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



54

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



55

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



56

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



57

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



58

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



59

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



60

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



61

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



62

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



63

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



64

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



65

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.


	Top
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.	Planning Commission Minutes 2/22/24
	PC Minutes 2-22-24-ACTION

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.	PC - TM6203 Extension
	PC - TM6203 Extension SR
	PC - TM6203 Extension ATT 1 Res. 24-___
	PC - TM6203 Extension ATT 2 Extension Request
	PC - TM6203 Extension ATT 3 Vesting Tentative Tract Map

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.	PC - CUP2017-004A
	PC - CUP2017-004A SR
	PC - CUP2017-004A ATT 1 Res. 24-____
	PC - CUP2017-004A ATT 1A Conditions of Approval
	PC - CUP2017-004A ATT 2 Site Plan. Elevations, and Floor Plan
	PC - CUP2017-004A ATT 3 Operational Statement
	PC - CUP2017-004A ATT 4 Correspondence from Commenting Agencies

	Bottom

